
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


July 24, 2008
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, July 24, 2008, at 7:00
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


 Floyd L. Jones,  Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order by Chairman.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Chairman Smith called the July 24, 2008 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:09 p.m.  Commissioner Pfeifer
gave the invocation.  Chairman Smith led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Pfeifer moved to accept the agenda as published and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.
Chairman Smith stated that an Executive Session took place prior to this meeting during which an item of litigation was
discussed, and asked for the agenda to be amended to allow Attorney Laurel Henderson to present her recommendation
to the Board prior to Public Hearings.  Chairman Smith also asked that Consent Agenda Item 3 be reworded to read
“three requests” instead of “two requests”.  Commissioner Maxwell moved to amend the agenda with the two changes
as requested and was seconded by Commissioner Horgan.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 2


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION


A. Recognition of Eagle Scout Cole Harp.


Captain Pete Nelms and Environmental Engineer Vanessa Birrell introduced Mr. Cole Harp to the Board and
informed the Commissioners about Mr. Harp’s work and contribution to Fayette County.  Mr. Harp then briefly
explained his Eagle Scout project and the work it entailed to the Commissioners.  Chairman Smith
congratulated Mr. Harp for his accomplishment, thanked him for his contribution to the community, and read
and presented a letter of commendation to Mr. Harp.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


B. Recognition of Eagle Scout Samuel Strawbridge.


Eagle Scout Samuel Strawbridge explained his Eagle Scout project and the work it entailed to the
Commissioners.  Chairman Smith commended and congratulated him for all he had done for scouting and
Fayette County before he presented a letter of commendation to Mr. Strawbridge.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


C. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Certificate for Excellence in Financial
Reporting for Fayette County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007.


Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel announced that it was his pleasure to inform the Board that Fayette
County received notification from the Government Finance Officers Association stating the County has, for the
fifteenth  consecutive year, received the Excellence in Financial Reporting Certificate for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  He congratulated the Board for this achievement as well as Finance Director
Mary Holland and Assistant Finance Director Toni Jo Howard since they have the principal duty and
responsibility to submit the CAFR on an annual basis while ensuring it meets all the requirements established
by the Government Finance Officers Association.  He explained the CAFR is judged by an impartial panel of
financial professionals in order to determine compliance with the high standards of the program which includes
demonstrating a constructive spirit of full disclosure to clearly communicate an entity’s financial story for the
fiscal year that is represented.  He continued by saying the Government Finance Officers Association is
comprised of more than 16,000 government finance professionals, is considered a gatekeeper for monitoring
and recommending improvements to governmental financial reporting, and consistently influences change in
reporting standards that raise the bar for governmental entities.  He concluded that he was very proud that
Fayette County was awarded by the Government Finance Officers Association for outstanding reporting.
Chairman Smith commented that, as a Certified Public Accountant and Auditor, and since he understood what
is involved with all the work, he could confirm that it takes a great amount of work to put together the CAFR and
that it is extremely difficult to maintain the information required year-in and year-out.  He commended Ms.
Holland and Ms. Howard for achieving the recognition this year and said it was quite an  outstanding
achievement for Fayette County to be awarded for fifteen years consecutively.  He closed by thanking Ms.
Holland and Ms. Howard for their hard work and diligence on behalf of the citizens of Fayette County.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 3


D. Presentation of the Georgia Association of Water Professionals 2008 Platinum Award to the Fayette
County Water System’s Crosstown Water Plant and the South Fayette Water Plant for complete and
consistent compliance with the Safe Drinking Water Act for the year 2007.


Assistant Water System Director Russell Ray announced that Fayette County’s Water System’s Crosstown
Water Treatment Plant and the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant received the Water Professionals 2008
Platinum Award.  He explained that each year water utilities are awarded the Gold Award for complying with
the Safe Drinking Water Act, reported that Fayette County had received the Gold Award for the previous five
years, and reiterated that Fayette County received the Platinum Award this year.  He congratulated the plant
operators since they are both knowledgeable and capable of complying with the rules and regulations required
to produce safe water for the public. Chairman Smith commented that many people take it for granted that
water comes out of the tap when it is turned on.  He pointed to the drought metro Atlanta is facing and the
problems in DeKalb County saying those problems cause people to understand how critical safe drinking water
is.  On behalf of the Board and the citizens of Fayette County, he thanked that Water System’s staff and,
particularly, the plant operators who are the “hands-on people ensuring Fayette County has safe drinking
water”.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT


Settlement of Lawsuit regarding Signage: Chairman Smith reminded the Board that the agenda was amended to allow
an attorney’s report to be presented prior to Public Hearings before he asked Attorney Laurel Henderson of Henderson
& Hundley, P.C., located in Decatur, Georgia, to make her presentation.


Ms. Henderson asked the Board to consider a proposed settlement to the lawsuit filed by Mr. Curtis “Bubba” Coffey, Mr.
Wayne Charles, and Tanner Advertising Group, against Fayette County, Georgia.  She explained the lawsuit had been
pending for four years, and work had continued for quite a long time to resolve the suit.  She informed the Board that
a separate Tanner Advertising lawsuit was recently lost in Federal Court, but the lawsuit against Fayette County was
different because it was postured under Georgia State law and in a different manner.  She said there were a number of
issues for the Board to consider as they made their decision such as how Georgia law has changed from the time the
lawsuit was first initiated until now, and the lawsuit was heard by the Georgia Supreme Court on two occasions and was
lost both times.  She explained that another issue to consider was based on a similar lawsuit that Fulton County lost,
and that loss drew a distinction between Federal laws that “are not content based and do not invite strict scrutiny” and
Georgia law that is content based.  She said that distinction would affect the probable outcome of the lawsuit if it went
to trial.  A fourth issue to consider, she added, was that this lawsuit was different from other sign litigation suits since the
County had actual plaintiffs asserting claims under the provisions that govern election sign campaigns, and she
concluded that governments have universally lost cases that had any provisions affected by campaign signs or elections.
She summarized by saying Fayette County was in a very poor position to win the case under the currently existing law
that has been “expanded” by the Georgia Supreme Court.


Ms. Henderson reported she has worked at negotiating with the other side to reach as narrow an agreement as possible,
and she was presenting that agreement to the Board for its consideration.  She stated that Tanner Advertising Group
was proposing a settlement that would allow them to erect two billboard signs instead of the eight billboard signs they
originally desired.  She reminded the Board that Tanner Advertising Group originally wanted eight billboard signs placed
throughout Fayette County along State Route 54 and Georgia Highway 85, and if they prevailed in the lawsuit, they could
contend that they are entitled to erect the eight billboards. She did not believe they would be able to place the eight
billboards, even if they did prevail in the courts, but she thought Tanner Advertising Group would be entitled to damages







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 4


for the full value of the billboards and the revenue they would earn.  She continued that, if the settlement were to be
accepted, Tanner Advertising Group would be able to place a billboard at Georgia Highway 85 and 145 Walker Parkway.
She said Tanner would also be permitted to place a second billboard at a commercial or industrial parcel adjacent to the
west side of Georgia Highway 85 and within 2,000 feet of the intersection of Georgia Highway 85 and Georgia Highway
279.  She  noted that the second sign would remain oriented to Georgia Highway 85.  She noted that the settlement
specifically prohibits LED displays on the billboards, but would permit the billboards to be double-faced, tri-vision
billboards in order to allow for a variety of messages.  She also stated that, while the County does not have the right to
tell people what can or cannot be placed on signs, Tanner Advertising Group has proffered that, if they are allowed to
place the two signs as proposed in the settlement, the billboards would never be used for adult entertainment-type
establishments, strip clubs, lingerie modeling, or any other adult-type subject matter.  She added that the settlement
stipulated that, if Tanner Advertising Group does not secure its permits within one year of the date of the agreement on
either site, they will be locked out of the site.  Ms. Henderson continued saying the settlement would also require Fayette
County to pay $50,000 in attorneys’ fees and $5,000 made payable to Mr. Coffey as full settlement for his claims.  She
mentioned that the $5,000 payment to Mr. Coffey is a relatively nominal sum that recognized some damage to him since
he was forced to remove election signs and told which signs to remove.  She noted that the “other side” had indicated
in discussions that their attorneys’ fees were already in excess of $100,000, that she thought that figure was  plausible,
and she thought the attorneys’ fees could easily double should the lawsuit go to trial.  She strongly recommended that
the Board accept the settlement since it would give Fayette County and its citizens certainty and would avoid a negative
result that would very expensive since Fayette County could be facing “very substantial damages” if there were no
agreement and the lawsuit was lost.


Chairman Smith asked Ms. Henderson how long she had been in practice, and Ms. Henderson replied she had been
in practice for approximately 22 years.  Chairman Smith asked how long she had been involved in defending the
constitutionality of sign ordinances for local governments.  Ms. Henderson answered she had been involved in defending
the constitutionality of sign ordinances for local governments almost the entire time she has been in practice, that she
had been involved in more First Amendment work than most attorneys, that she had worked in both adult entertainment
and sign litigation cases on behalf of local governments, and that she currently performs sign ordinance reviews for the
Georgia Municipal Association where different cities send in their sign ordinances so she can analyze them and provide
guidance on what needs to be corrected.  Chairman Smith asked if it was correct that former County Attorney Bill
McNalley recommended that Fayette County engage her for defense of the sign ordinance due to her experience and
because sign ordinance litigation is an area of specialization for her law firm.  Ms. Henderson replied that was correct.
Chairman Smith asked Ms. Henderson to provide an estimation of the monetary damages Fayette County would have
to pay if it lost the lawsuit.  Ms. Henderson answered that the damages would be substantial, explained the damages
would be calculated over a ten to twenty-year period of time, speculated that each sign face would probably result in an
annual damage award of about $750,000 per year, and reiterated that if a $750,000 award for each year was projected
over a ten-year time frame the damages would cost a substantial amount of money.  Chairman Smith asked for Ms.
Henderson’s professional opinion about the probability that Fayette County would win the lawsuit should it go to trial.
Ms. Henderson said, in lieu of the case previously mentioned regarding Fulton County, there was a very low probability
that Fayette County would succeed in its litigation.  Chairman Smith next asked many more dollars of legal fees could
Fayette County incur should it decide to pursue litigation.  Ms. Henderson explained that expert witnesses would have
to be hired, that factual groundwork for the trial in Superior Court would have to be done, and that there would be a trial
that would last for probably three days before saying that work alone would cost Fayette County approximately $100,000.
She said if Fayette County prevailed in front of Judge English, who has already ruled in favor of Fayette County twice,
the plaintiff would undoubtedly appeal the decision, and Fayette County would have to pay for that appeal as well.  She
added that, if Fayette County lost the case, the County would have some exposure to the other side’s attorneys’ fees,
and those fees would be about twice as much since they charge a much higher rate per hour.  Chairman Smith said Ms.
Henderson reasonably explained why Fayette County should accept the settlement and asked if accepting the settlement







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 5


would have any bearing on the current sign ordinance and, if it did not, why not.  Ms. Henderson replied that settling the
case would not have any bearing on the current sign ordinance since the first step she took after becoming involved in
the case was to ensure Fayette County had a new sign ordinance that differed from the old ordinance under which the
permits were originally sought.  She believed the new sign ordinance was “in good shape” and if anyone applied for a
sign permit from this point forward, their application would be subject to the new sign ordinance.  She reiterated that
Fayette County would not have any exposure under its new sign ordinance.


Chairman Smith announced that the Board had received a recommendation from counsel to accept a settlement which
would require Fayette County to pay $50,000 in attorneys’ fees, $5,000 to the plaintiff in settlement of all claims, and
allow the location of two billboard sites on Georgia Highway 85.  Commissioner Maxwell moved to accept the settlement
requiring the County to pay $50,000 in attorneys’ fees and $5,000 to Mr. Coffey, to allow the location of two billboards
on Georgia Highway 85, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the settlement documents.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.


Commissioner Pfeifer announced he would oppose the motion for two reasons.  He said the first reason he would oppose
the motion was due to a difference of semantics since he did not believe the case was lost at the Georgia Supreme Court
but was only returned to the local court for a decision.  He said the second reason he would oppose the motion was the
settlement would not make Fayette County immune to future lawsuits.  He closed by saying  that the citizens should be
aware of that possibility.


Commissioner Frady expressed his thought that the taxpayers would be at greater risk if the County pursued the lawsuit
and that it was prudent to follow counsel’s advise to accept the settlement.  He mentioned that he did not want to see
billboards in Fayette County, but with the County in this position it would be foolish not to accept the settlement in light
of the money it would cost the taxpayers in the future by going to trial.  He concluded saying he was in favor of the
motion.


Chairman Smith thanked Ms. Henderson for her work on Fayette County’s behalf before saying none of the options were
particularly appealing.  He said it was unfortunate that the County sometimes finds itself in positions where it must
choose between the “lesser of the evils”, and in this particular case the choice is between the evils and expense.  He
asked for the record to reflect that the majority of the Commissioners on the current Board inherited this lawsuit, and that,
while this lawsuit was not of this Board’s making, this Board did not have the ability to avoid the issue.


The motion to accept the settlement requiring the County to pay $50,000 in attorneys’ fees and $5,000 to Mr. Coffey,
to allow the location of two billboards on Georgia Highway 85, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the settlement
documents passed in a 4-1 vote with Commissioner Pfeifer voting in opposition.  A copy of the settlement document,
identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING


E. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance regarding Article V.
General Provisions, Section 5-17. Height Limitation of Walls and Fences, and Section 5-11. Common
Area, and Article III. Definitions, Common Area, Fence and Wall as presented by the Planning and
Zoning Department.  THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH MODIFICATIONS
IN A 4-1 VOTE.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina introduced the topic by saying staff has been working on this
issue since October 2007 when a property owner approached the Board about a fence built in the County’s







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 6


right-of-way.  He said staff looked at the fence but, while doing so, discovered a number of other fences that
are out of compliance with the current ordinance.  He gave a brief explanation of the current ordinance before
explaining that the proposed amendments resulted from a review of the current ordinance and from observing
the fences and walls currently constructed in Fayette County.  He said the proposed amendments would help
control how and where fences are built before he explained the differences, applications and exemptions
permitted through the proposed amendments.  He added, if the proposed amendments were adopted, there
would be a need for a public awareness initiative and information would need to be sent to the local
newspapers, posted on the County’s website, and contact would need to be made with local fencing and
masonry businesses in the area.  He summarized saying staff tried to take the existing ordinance, incorporate
the types of fences already constructed in Fayette County, and produce an enforceable ordinance.


Chairman Smith questioned the wording of the last sentence of in Article V., 5-17, A-1, and suggested the word
“will” be changed to “shall”.  He then asked what the “35 feet” were based on in Article V., 5-17, C-3.  Mr. Frisina
replied it was based on his personal observation of a large fence already constructed in the County.  Chairman
Smith next questioned Article V., 5-17, D, saying that it seemed “to preclude a fence following the grade of the
land as would be expected”, that it also seemed to mandate that a fence must be built in a stair-step design,
and suggested that its wording  be changed.  Mr. Frisina suggested the wording could be changed from “will
result in a stair-step pattern” to “could result in a stair-step pattern”.  Chairman Smith then asked about Article
V., 5-17, F, and said it appeared to grandfather any fence that is currently in the right-of-way.  Mr. Frisina
replied that the only exemption would be for any fence that did not meet the height requirement, and suggested
rewording the section to read “and which do not comply with these height restrictions”.  Chairman Smith did not
believe the suggested rewording “would work”.  County Attorney Scott Bennett added that a right-of-way
encroachment is not a matter of nonconformity but is rather an illegal action because it is technically
trespassing on County property.  He explained that the intent of the proposed amendments is that everything
lawfully erected prior to the acceptance of the proposed amendments would be permitted as well as anything
that is illegal with respect to its height.  Both Chairman Smith and Mr. Bennett concluded, however, that the
wording needed to be changed.


Commissioner Pfeifer commented that the Planning Commission, the Planning and Zoning staff, and the Board
of Commissioners put a tremendous amount of work and thought into this issue.  He said the initial approach
that was taken by staff was a good one, and their good work had produced an ordinance that would not create
problems for Fayette County.  He noted that people had tried to build their fences out of garbage bags or had
threatened to erect a concrete wall standing fifty-feet tall, and this new ordinance would work to eliminate those
types of problems.  He said staff had successfully navigated through the problems and produced an ordinance
that clearly states what Fayette County wants.   He concluded saying he appreciated the hard work contributed
by the Planning and Zoning staff, the Planning Commission, and the Board of Commissioners on this issue.


Commissioner Maxwell asked Mr. Frisina to define “livestock”,and Mr. Frisina said livestock were, basically,
cows, chickens, pigs, goats and sheep.  Commissioner Maxwell then asked Mr. Frisina, if he owned a $0.75
chicken, if he could be exempt from the ordinance by utilizing the exemption found in Article V., 5-17, E-2.  Mr.
Frisina said that was correct before adding that exemption was also found in the current ordinance.
Commissioner Maxwell explained that, as a Republican, he was in favor of less government instead of more
government and that the Commissioners who would vote in favor of the proposed amendments would not be
following the Republican principle.  He thought the new ordinance would be “over broad”, and while he agreed
there should be some regulations in order to allow police officers to see the property, as well as fire engines
to enter the property, he thought the new ordinance went too far.  He continued saying he had a real problem
with how the review started since it began with a fence that was constructed in the County’s right-of-way, and,







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 7


despite the fence being in the right-of-way, the County had not cited the person or taken any proactive
approach to correct the problem.  He said the new ordinance would allow for a permit process, and that while
there is no fee attached to the new ordinance, he could anticipate that, in the future, someone could suggest
instituting a fee for putting up a fence.  He noted that the fee would in fact be a tax, and he was not in favor of
voting for a new tax.  He concluded saying he could not support the proposed amendments as requested since
he did not see any reason to pass a new ordinance that would replace an old ordinance that was not enforced
because he had no assurance that the new ordinance would be enforced any more than the old ordinance.


No one from the public spoke in favor of or in opposition to this issue.


Chairman Smith stated there were a few items that needed rewording and suggested the item be tabled until
the August 14, 2008 meeting in order to allow Mr. Bennett to review the proposed amendments and make the
wording changes as discussed.  Commissioner Frady moved to table the item until the August 14, 2008
meeting in order to enable Mr. Bennett to reword and review the proposed amendments as discussed.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


F. Consideration of a Beer and Wine Packaged Sales License for Pumpers Food & Gas, d/b/a Fayette
Village BP, 1408 S.R. 54 West, Fayetteville, GA.  Sudesh Kumar Dhingra, Owner, and Shiraz Muhammad
Aly, Agent.  This property is located in Land Lot 25 of the 7th District, fronts on S.R. 54 and Huiet Road,
and is zoned C-H.  This is for Change of Ownership.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.  Commissioner Horgan moved to approve the change
of ownership of a Beer and Wine Packaged Sales License to Sudesh Kumar Dhingra, Owner, and Shiraz
Muhammad Aly, Agent of Pumpers Food & Gas, doing business as Fayette Village, 1408 S.R. 54 West,
Fayetteville, Georgia.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT


No one addressed the Board during Public Comment.


CONSENT AGENDA


Commissioner Pfeifer moved to approve the Consent Agenda as printed with the change noted earlier by the Chairman
to reword Consent Agenda Item 3 from “two requests” to “three requests” and without Consent Agenda Item 8 which
concerned the approval of minutes.  Commissioner Maxwell asked for Consent Agenda Item 1 to be removed from
Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Pfeifer amended his motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 2 through 7.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 8


1. Approval to authorize the Chairman to execute documents for the Georgia Department of Community
Affairs accepting a Special Project Appropriation Grant in the amount of $200,000 for use toward the
construction of an emergency operations facility in Fayette County.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Maxwell explained he had Consent Agenda Item1 removed because he wanted to hear either
Interim Fire Chief Allen McCullough or Captain Pete Nelms speak about the grant application since the County
had been awarded money and it was difficult for him to acknowledge it only on a Consent Agenda.  Interim Fire
Chief McCullough said Fayette County had asked Senator Ronnie Chance to seek additional funding
opportunities, and the Senator was able to secure $200,000 through the Georgia Department of Community
Affairs’ Special Project Appropriation Grant.  He anticipated Senator Ronnie Chance would come to the Board
in the near future and present the check for the grant money.  He reported that the necessary paperwork is
being completed, and he mentioned that Executive Assistant Carol Chandler asked for the item to be placed
on the agenda so that approval could be gained through the appropriate channels in order to secure the funds
and place them into the County’s digest.  Commissioner Maxwell added that the money was coming from the
State of Georgia and not solely from the Fayette County taxpayers before moving to approve Consent Agenda
Item 1.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  Commissioner Pfeifer added that, while the $200,000 does
come from the State of Georgia, the money is partially supplied from Fayette County taxpayers.  Chairman
Smith mentioned there is a time limit on the grant since the funds must be expended in 12 months, and also
mentioned the accountability clause stated the grant is subject to an audit.  The motion to approve Consent
Agenda Item 1 passed unanimously.


2. Authorization to increase the County’s mileage reimbursement in accordance with the County’s
established travel policy for expenses related to travel for official business.  This adjustment is a result
of a change in the IRS reimbursement rate.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 9", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of recommendations related to three requests for tax refunds as presented.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approve reappointment of Peki Prince to the Region 4 EMS Council.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation from the Department of Fire and Emergency Services to award Bid
#668 for Fire and EMS protective clothing to Fireline, Inc. and North American Fire Equipment Company
(NEFECO).  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


6. Authorization to increase the Overtime Expenditure Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff’s
Office Criminal Investigation Division to include reimbursement from Federal agencies for personnel
assigned to assist in various investigations.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 13",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7. Consideration of the revised Alcoholic Beverage Application Form (New Location, Change of
Ownership, and Renewal) and the revised Personnel Statement Form as presented by the Planning and
Zoning Department.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 9


8. Approval of minutes of the June 26, 2008 Board of Commissioners’ meeting and the July 2, 2008 Board
of Commissioners’ Workshop meeting.


Commissioner Pfeifer moved to approve the June 26, 2008 minutes but not the July 2, 2008 minutes due to
its format.  The motion died for lack of a second.  Commissioner Frady moved to approve Consent Agenda Item
8.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  Chairman Smith asked Commissioner Pfeifer if there were
anything in the minutes that were technically incorrect or omitted, and Commissioner Pfeifer answered there
was nothing technically incorrect or omitted in the minutes.  Chairman Smith asked if Commissioner Pfeifer was
objecting to the form of the minutes.  Commissioner Pfeifer replied that was correct.  The motion to approve
Consent Agenda Item 8 passed in a 4-1 vote with Commissioner Pfeifer voting in opposition.


OLD BUSINESS


G. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code, Chapter 10. Motor Vehicles and
Traffic, Article III. Motorized Carts, Sec. 10-42. Street Authorization, to be added in its entirety as
presented by Planning and Zoning, Public Works, and the Sheriff’s Office.  (Renumbering existing Sec.
10-42. To 10-43. And renumber remaining sections.)


Mr. Pete Frisina reminded the Board that this issue was addressed at the July 2, 2008 Workshop meeting
before saying the demand to use golfcarts on County roads is increasing.  He informed the Board that golfcarts
have been permitted use on roads within subdivisions as well as on Quarters Roads within the boundaries of
Highgrove Subdivision and on Huiet Drive within the boundaries of Waterlace Subdivision.    He reported that
a number of requests are coming from Fayette County citizens who desire unincorporated Fayette County
roads that connect to points of interest generally in Peachtree City, like Sumner Road, to be permitted for
golfcart.  He said Sumner Road is L-shaped, that a portion of the road extends into Peachtree  and is permitted
for golfcart usage, but the section located in unincorporated Fayette County does not permit golfcart use.  He
continued saying the ordinance basically states that any road can be authorized by the Board for golfcart use,
and that the proposed amendments were attempting to clarify that authorization by  specifying how streets will
be authorized and by listing conditions that must be considered when a road is requested for golfcart use such
as the street’s classification, the posted speed limit, speed characteristics, the grade of the road, visibility
distance, and other conditions related to the particular streets.  He mentioned that other measures, such as
reducing the speed limit, adding signage, or utilizing traffic counting devises, could be added to the conditions
should the Board determine they are necessary.  He closed reiterating the proposed amendments were
designated to clarify the process.


Commissioner Horgan asked how would residents know if their streets have been approved for golfcart use,
and Mr. Frisina replied that signs would be placed alongside the authorized roads notifying the public where
golfcarts are and are not permitted.  He continued saying this was a standard practice and that the Sheriff’s
Department had initiated the process in tandem with the Road Department based on a judge’s guidance to
notify the public before citations could be written.


Commissioner Pfeifer mentioned that Dividend Drive in Peachtree City has a  40 miles per hour speed limit and,
despite that, golfcarts are driven on that road daily.  He suggested looking into the reason that is permitted while
suggesting an exception may be in place for that road.  He further noted that citizens who live in unincorporated
Fayette County are charged a substantially larger tag fee than the citizens of Peachtree City, and thought that
was due to  maintenance cost.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 10


Commissioner Frady moved to adopt the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code, Chapter 10.
Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article III. Motorized Carts, Sec. 10-42. Street Authorization to be added in its
entirety, and to renumber existing sections 10-42. and 10-43., and to renumber the remaining sections.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 15", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS


H. Consideration of a request from Sheila Studdard, Clerk of Superior Court, that Fayette County affiliate
with the Georgia Superior Courts Cooperative Authority which would allow Fayette County records to
be provided to the Authority in exchange for a fee.


Ms. Sheila Studdard said she inherited a situation where, prior to her tenure as Clerk of Superior Court,  court
records had not been microfilmed as required in Title 15 of Georgia State law.  She said that, with the Board’s
provision of $40,000 to $50,000, she was able to preserve all of the land records dating to 1823 by microfilming
them, but she could “only guess what the cost would be to preserve the court records”.  She stated that she
has explored the options available to her and found that the Georgia Superior Courts Cooperative Authority
allows clerks to enter into agreements with them in order to exchange land records for a fee. She acknowledged
that Fayette County provides funding to her Office before she repeated that the cost of electronically preserving
records is unknowable and asked the Board to consider her request.


Chairman Smith asked how long it would take to complete the preservation project.  Ms. Studdard replied the
work would encompass the entirety of Fayette County’s history before answering that she did not know how
long it would take to complete the project.  Chairman Smith next asked if the funding would come from access
fees from the Georgia Superior Courts Cooperative Authority.  Ms. Studdard explained there would be no
access fees, but she would be selling Fayette County’s records to the Authority so they could place them on
a statewide index which is kept by the Authority.  She said the Georgia Superior Courts Cooperative Authority
would pay her $0.25 a page, and continued saying she would not enter into any agreement where Fayette
County could not pay for the project.  She explained that she would break the project into smaller projects so
that, should the funding come to an end, the County would not owe money to a vendor who is hired to microfilm
court records.  Chairman Smith asked if there was anything in this agreement that would replace other work
currently being performed in the County, and asked if this was a totally new project.  Ms. Studdard answered
that no other work like this, to her knowledge, was being performed in the County, and said this is a new project
for the court records.


Commissioner Frady rhetorically asked if Ms. Studdard’s office would be paid for the records.  Ms. Studdard
said the Georgia Superior Courts Cooperative Authority would pay her office with State money, and the money
she received would be set aside to pay for the restoration and preservation of more court records.
Commissioner Frady mentioned this would be a savings to the taxpayers.  Ms. Studdard agreed, since Georgia
law requires the Clerk of the Court to microfilm or electronically image court records.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 11


Mr. Krakeel added there were two related issues he wanted to bring to the Board’s attention.  He said the first
issue was that approximately $28,000 had been budgeted in the current 2009 fiscal year budget, and that
money would be made available back to Fayette County and placed into the General Fund’s fund balance.  He
stated that since the $28,000 would not be expended, the County would realize an immediate savings.  The
second issue was that the money received by the Clerk of the Court for images that are sold to the Georgia
Superior Courts Cooperative Authority would be solely dedicated to the use of imaging and microfilming the
records until the project is complete.


Chairman Smith noted there were two changes that he was requesting for Items Three and Four.  He requested
Item Three to read “fiscal year accounting” instead of “calendar year accounting” in order to coincide with the
County’s accounting year.  He further requested that Item Four be amended to state that at the conclusion of
the project, meaning all the ensuing years have been microfilmed or electronically preserved, that the residual
monetary balance will be remitted to Fayette County.


Commissioner Frady moved to approve  Resolution 2008-11 entering into an agreement with the Office of the
Clerk of Superior Court as presented for the preservation of records, with changes as noted by the Chairman,
and to authorize the Chairman to sign the same.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and Resolution 2008-11, identified as
“Attachment 16", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


I. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the bid for the Milam Road Culvert Repair Contract
(Proposal #658) to Engineering Restorations, Inc. for the amount of $97,600.  This project also includes
other improvements to the bridge.


Road Department Director Zack Taylor spoke about this request and said this bid was obtained through the
Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  He added the RFP included specifications including right-of-way, traffic
control, and detouring considerations.


Commissioner Maxwell recalled that part of the historical problem with this repair work was it would cause the
total closure of Milam Road for a period of time.  He asked if that problem was resolved.  Mr. Taylor said the
problem was resolved, and that while there was the desire to keep all the lanes open on Milam Road, there
would be some lane closures while the guardrail was installed.  Commissioner Maxwell asked, should the
recommendation be approved, when would the project begin and end.  Mr. Taylor replied that, once the contact
went through County Attorney Scott Bennett’s office, the work would be completed in 30 to 45 days.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve staff’s recommendation to award the bid for the Milam Road Culver
Repair Contract to Engineering Restorations, Inc. for the amount of $97,000.  Commissioner Frady seconded
the motion. No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 17", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


J. Consideration of Water Committee’s recommendation to award the annual contract for waterline
extensions to the low bidder, Lantz Construction, at a cost of $1,149,635.


Mr. Russell Ray stated that the Water System was asking the Board to award the contract to Lantz Construction
for the price as read from the agenda.  Commissioner Frady asked if this was an annual contract and if it had
anything to do with Lake McIntosh.  Mr. Ray replied it had nothing to do with Lake McIntosh, but that it was an
annual contract similar to what has been occurring for the last five years.  Commissioner Horgan asked if only







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 12


three bids were sent.  Mr. Ray answered that six contractors looked at the project but only three bid on it.
Chairman Smith asked if he correctly understood that the annual contract was not for a specific job, but was
for any project that may be undertaken by the Water System during the year. Mr. Ray said the Chairman’s
understanding was correct.  


Commissioner Frady moved to approve the Water Committee’s recommendation to award the annual contract
for waterline extensions to the low bidder, Lantz Construction, at a cost of $1,149,365.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 18", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT


Professional Exchange Program: Interim County Administrator Jack Krakeel announced Fayette County received
notification earlier in the day from the Department of Homeland Security that Captain Pete Nelms was selected to
participate in a professional exchange program that exists between the Georgia National Guard and the Republic of
Georgia.  He explained the program would begin on September 13 and end on September 19, and the purpose of the
program was related to emergency management.  He reiterated that the State of Georgia nominated Captain Nelms to
represent the State from an emergency management perspective, and the State’s nomination was accepted by the
Georgia National Guard.  He said he knew several individuals who had the opportunity to take similar trips before he
explained those types of trips are not vacations since participants will be involved in intensive work activities while
abroad.  He thought the selection was quite a distinction and honor, and asked for the Board’s concurrence to allow
Captain Nelms to represent the State of Georgia in this initiative between two counties in order to exchange best and
recommended practices as well as expand the knowledge basis between two counties.


The Board gave their verbal concurrence and commendation to Captain Nelms.  Chairman Smith thanked Captain Nelms
for all his work and contribution to Fayette County.


Fayette Senior Services Center: Mr. Krakeel reported that he has directed staff to research the feasibility of providing
some electronic backup to the Fayette Senior Services Center.  He explained that the Center was struck by lightning
the previous night, and that strike disabled the Center’s telephone system.  He said the Center is heavily dependent on
their telephone system and uses it to notify senior citizens of their meals-on-wheels program.  He stated Fayette County
has the ability, by providing a couple of land lines,  to provide backup capability to the Senior Services Center from the
Justice Center at a very minimal cost to the County.  He concluded saying the backup capability would mitigate against
the Center losing their phone system in the future due to lightening strikes, construction interruptions, or other
unanticipated events.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT


University of Massachusetts-Amherst Project Funding Agreement: County Attorney Scott Bennett said he had a
project funding agreement that would allow  Fayette County to participate in a study with the University of
Massachusetts-Amherst.  He explained the study would require a $3,000 contribution to the University who would then
take water samples from the County’s watershed and test them for certain pollutants and contaminates.  He continued
saying the County would have it water tested, would be a part of the study, and would be entitled to any reports,
literature, or research results generated from the study in exchange for the contribution.  He concluded saying Water
System Director Tony Parrott asked him to present the funding agreement to the Board, and he also thought the Board
had been informed of this study during a previous meeting.  Commissioner Horgan moved to allow the Water System
to enter into the agreement and to authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement documents for the University of







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 13


Massachusetts-Amherst Water Testing  Study at a cost of $3,000.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the University of Massachusetts-Amherst Project
Funding Agreement, identified as “Attachment 19", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Tyler Technologies Revised Payment Schedule: Mr. Bennett stated that Fayette County is currently under contract
with Tyler Technologies, and the contract is for software related to the Tax Assessor’s Office that will enable the GIS
system to be transferred.  He explained that Tyler Technologies encountered into some problems and, even though their
project is not complete, the contract requires Fayette County to pay the final payment under its payment schedule.  He
reported  that Tyler Technologies has agreed to a revised payment schedule so that the final payment will not have to
be rendered until October 1, 2008, thus enabling Tyler Technologies to complete the project before the final payment
is made.  He concluded by saying this agreement is an amendment to the contract in order to lengthen the payment
schedule and allow Tyler Technologies to complete the project before the final payment is made.  Commissioner Pfeifer
moved to authorize the Chairman to sign the revised payment schedule under the Tyler Technologies GIS contract.
Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the
Revised Payment Schedule, identified as “Attachment 20", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


EnerGov Solutions Software Purchase Contract and Support and Maintenance Agreement: Mr. Bennett stated
that the Board previously authorized Community Development to purchase new building permit software and they have
selected EnerGov Solutions to provide the software.  He said he had the contracts available for the purchase of and
servicing of the software at a total cost of $54,779.85.  Chairman Smith asked if the request was previously approved
and the money was in the budget, and Mr. Bennett said he understood it was.  Commissioner Frady moved to authorize
the Chairman to sign the EnerGov Solutions Software Purchase Contract and the Support and Maintenance Agreement
at a cost of $54,779.85 for Community Development software implementation.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the EnerGov Software Purchase Contract
and the Support and Maintenance Agreement, identified as “Attachment 21", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


AllSouth Contracting, Inc. Contract: Mr. Bennett announced that, previously the Board approved a bid for additional
pumping capacity at the Flint River Pump Station to AllSouth Contractors, and the contract, in the amount of $372,203,
was ready for a signature.  He concluded saying he had reviewed the payment bond, surety bond, performance bond,
and the insurance before saying the contract was in order and ready for the Chairman’s signature.  Commissioner Frady
asked if the money would come from enterprise funds.  Mr. Bennett said it would.  Commissioner Frady moved to
authorize the Chairman to sign the contract with AllSouth Contractors, Inc. in order to upgrade the Flint River Pump
Station, in the amount of $72,203.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.  A copy of the AllSouth Contracting Inc. contract, identified as “Attachment 22", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


STAFF REPORTS


2008 Millage Rates: Finance Director Mary Holland began saying the Commissioners had received information prior
to the meeting pertaining to the recommendation staff will make regarding the 2008 millage rates.  She explained that
staff will be coming to them at the August 14, 2008 public hearing in order to ask the Board to adopt the recommended
rates as presented in the information she supplied.  She added that the provided information also included the format
that would appear in the County’s legal organ, Fayette Daily News, in order to advertise the recommended millage rates.
She concluded saying the millage rates include a rollback of the reassessments, and offered to answer any questions
the Commissioners may have.  A copy of the information package, identified as “Attachment 23", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 14


Cancellation of the August 6, 2008 Workshop Meeting: Executive Assistant Carol Chandler announced the deadline
for submitting agenda requests for the Wednesday, August 6, 2008 Workshop Meeting has closed and there was very
little to prepare for that meeting.  She asked the Board to consider cancelling the Workshop meeting.  Commissioner
Maxwell noted he had placed an item for discussion on that meeting but had no objection to placing it on the next
available Workshop meeting.  Commissioner Frady moved to cancel the Wednesday Workshop Meeting to be held on
August 6, 2008.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


BOARD REPORTS


Intersection Study with Tri-County Alliance: Chairman Smith reminded the Commissioners that the Board had
received a request several months ago from Tri-County Alliance to participate in a study for the interchange at Interstate
Highway 85 and State Route 74 with the purpose to alleviate traffic that is mostly generated from Fayette County
commuters who are driving north to work.  He reported that approximately $75,000 is in the County’s SPLOST budget
that has been designated for a traffic study of State Route 74.  He said Tri-County’s study would cost approximately
$100,000 and that the South Fulton Community CID had already pledged $50,000 of that cost.  He said he was
comfortable recommending, based on his understanding of the money set aside in SPLOST, that the County designate
$40,000 in order to participate in the intersection improvement study.  He then asked the Board to commit $40,000 from
SPLOST funds made payable to Tri-County Alliance upon the condition that Tri-County secures the remaining $10,000
in order to fund the intersection improvement study.  Commissioner Frady moved to approve $40,000 of SPLOST funds
be made payable to Tri-County Alliance upon Tri-County Alliance’s commitment to secure the remaining $10,000 needed
to study the intersection of Interstate Highway 85 and State Route 74.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.
Chairman Smith commented that, while the intersection is not physically located in Fayette County, this study could have
a tremendous impact on the transportation corridor within the County as well as for Fayette County commuters.  The
motion passed unanimously.


EXECUTIVE SESSION


An Executive Session was held in the Commissioners’ Conference Room at 6:00 p.m. and adjourned at 7:00 p.m.
Notice of the early Executive Session was posted prior to the meeting.  During the Executive Session, the Board
discussed litigation and real estate acquisition items.


Executive Session Affidavit: County Attorney Scott Bennett said the customary motion had not been made concerning
the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Frady moved to authorize the Chairman to sign the Executive Session
Affidavit stating the Board talked about real estate acquisition and litigation items.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified
as “Attachment 24", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
July 24, 2008
Page 15


ADJOURNMENT


Commissioner Frady moved to adjourn the July 24, 2008, meeting.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Official Session was adjourned at 8:59 p.m.


___________________________________                                __________________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk                       Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the August 14, 2008.


___________________________________
         Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








The AgendaThe AgendaThe AgendaThe Agenda
Board of Commissioners


August 14, 2008


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PUBLIC HEARING:


A. Consideration of Resolution 2008-12 establishing millage rates and levying


ad valorem taxes for 2008. 


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval to release the County’s possible interest in the property known as


the “Old Stop Courthouse”.


2. Authorization for the Chairman to execute the Federal Annual Certification


Report as requested by Sheriff Randall Johnson.


3. Approval for staff to advertise proposed amendments to the Fayette County


Zoning Ordinance regarding Article VII. Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and


Modifications, Section 7-1. Conditional Use Approval, B. Conditional Uses


Allowed, 23. Home Occupation, as presented by the Planning and Zoning


Department. This item was last discussed during the June 4, 2008


Wednesday Workshop.


4. Approval of permission for staff to advertise recommended revision of


“suggested planting materials” in the Article V. Buffer and Landscape


Ordinance of the Fayette County Development Regulations. This item was


last discussed during the July 2, 2008 Wednesday Workshop.


5. Approval of the Road Department’s recommendation to award annual


contract for asphalt (Bid #671) to The Lions Group Paving with alternative


award to E.R. Snell Contractor, Inc. (Tyrone Plant).


6. Approval of the Road Department’s recommendation to award annual


contract for CRS-2H tack material, bid #672, to Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc.


7. Approval of the July 24, 2008 Regular Session Minutes.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell
Peter Pfeifer


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator


Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month at 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


Phone: (770) 460-5730 ext.  5400
Fax: (770) 460-9412


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
August 14, 2008
Page Number 2


OLD BUSINESS:


B. Consideration of the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance regarding Article V.


General Provisions, Section 5-17. Height Limitations of Walls and Fences and Section 5-11. Common Area,


and Article III. Definitions, Common Area, Fence and Wall as presented by the Planning and Zoning


Department.  THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED APPROVAL WITH MODIFICATIONS IN A


4-1 VOTE.  This item was tabled following the July 24, 2008 Public Hearing.


C. Consideration of proposed revisions to Fayette County’s Extent of Service/Level of Service (EOS/LOS) Policy


for Stormwater Management.  This item was last discussed during the March 5, 2008 Wednesday Workshop.


NEW BUSINESS:


D. Consideration of a request to improve the 0.5 mile section of Snead Road “west” of Old Greenville Road.


E. Consideration of a proposed Resolution and Intergovernmental Agreement with Clayton County for repair and


improvements to the Helmer Road Bridge over Camp Creek.


F. Discussion of proposal to construct a  pedestrian access across the West Fayetteville Bypass- Phase I project


currently under construction.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS
BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Commissioners Carol Chandler


Scott Bennett, if needed Thursday, August 14, 2008


Approval to release the County's possible interest in the property known as the "Old Stop Courthouse".


The deed for this property contained a reversionary clause to the owner of the property should the property no longer be used as a 


courthouse.  The county has not used the property as a courthouse or polling place for years.  The property owner has requested 


the County execute the quit claim deed to ensure that there is no cloud on the title to this land.  (The reversionary clause was in a 


deed that was recorded in 1889.)  The owner will pay the County $100 for this release.


Authorize the disposition of the property.


N/A


Yes Wednesday, September 5, 2007


No


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







Workshop Meeting
Official Minutes for September 5, 2007
Page Number 13


New Business:


F. Discussion of Resolution 2007-20 authorizing the abandonment of any interest that Fayette
County may have in a site on Handly Road known as the “Old Stop Courthouse”.  A copy of
Resolution 2007-20, identified as “Attachment 19", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


Chairman Smith announced Item F under New Business was the next item of business, read its
introduction from the agenda, and asked Mr.  Krakeel to explain the item.


Mr.  Krakeel said the situation began over 100 years ago when a property owner provided the county a
parcel of land for the use and construction of a structure to be used for a voting district.  He said ten years
ago, information regarding the parcel of property was researched, and it was determined the voting
precinct was not built on the parcel of land deeded to the county, but on a separate piece of land very
close in proximity to the original parcel of land.  When the error was discovered, he explained, the county
corrected the mistake by issuing a quit claim deed to the heirs of the estate for the unused piece of land. 
He said the current owners are now trying to develop their property in order to sell it, but the land directly
underneath the voting precinct belongs to the county due to acquired property rights.  He emphasized no
other land belongs to the county except for the land directly underneath the voting precinct.  He described
the condition of the voting precinct as a concrete block structure with fallen-in walls, no roof, and trees
growing out of it.  He stated the way to legally correct the mistake was for the county to provide an
appropriate conveyance by abandoning the section of property the concrete blocks are lying on back to the
original property owners.


Chairman Smith added the county could have potential legal liabilities should someone visit the dilapidated
building on county property and incur consequential damages.  


Commissioner Pfeifer motioned to approve Resolution 2007-20 and was seconded by Commissioner
Horgan.  Commissioner Horgan asked if there was any cleanup cost associated with the abandonment the
county would incur.  Mr.  Krakeel said the property owners indicated they would take care of any cleanup
costs for removing the blocks.  Chairman Smith asked for further discussion, heard none, and called for a
vote on the motion.


The motion to approve Resolution 2007-20 passed with a unanimous vote. 













		Commissioners- Old Stop Courthouse Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Old Stop Courthouse Backup

		Old Stop Courthouse Backup-a.pdf

		Old Stop Courthouse Backup 2












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Engineering/Public Works Phil Mallon


Phil Mallon Thursday, August 14, 2008


Approval for staff to advertise recommended revision of the "suggested planting materials" in the Article V. Buffer and Landscape 


Ordinance of the Fayette County Development Regulations.


The Suggested planting materials in Sections 8-157 and 8-161 of the Development Regulations lists several plant species that are 


not appropriate for Fayette County's climate zone and/or are very susceptible to disease.  In addition, some of the plants are 


considered invasive and pose a threat to the natural areas of Georgia.  The revised planting lists will omit the undesirable plant 


species and includes only those plants suited to the climate of Fayette County, are known to be disease-resistant, and are not 


considered invasive. 


 


Sources for the revised list include the University of Georgia publications "Landscape Plants for Georgia" and "Xeriscape: A Guide to 


Developing a Water-Wise Landscape."  The draft revised list (attached) has been reviewed by several qualified horticultural 


specialists in Fayette County.


Approval to proceed with advertising suggested revisions to Article V of the Development Regulations. 


 


After advertising, this issue will appear on a Board Agenda for Public Hearing.


Yes Wednesday, July 2, 2008


No


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes





		Engineering- Buffer and Landscape Agenda Request File.pdf

		Engineering- Buffer and Landscape Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Engineering Department Phil Mallon


Phil Mallon/ Vanessa Birrell Thursday, August 14, 2008


Consideration of proposed revisions to Fayette County's Extent of Service/Level of Service (EOS/LOS) Policy for Stormwater 


Management.


Changes are required to Fayette County's EOS/LOS policy for stormwater management in order to repair failing infrastructure and to 


meet regional and state stormwater regulations.  The attached policy is staff's recommendation to meet these needs.


Approval of staff recommendation for new Stormwater Maintenance EOS/LOS policy


Funding will be required for particular projects if the proposed policy is approved.  Requests for funding will be made annually 


through the CIP process.


Yes Wednesday, March 5, 2008


Yes


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







FAYETTE COUNTY’S PROPOSED 
EXTENT OF SERVICE /LEVEL OF SERVICE POLICY 


FOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
8-14-08 


Fayette County’s municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4) is a combination of 
pipes, culverts, inlets, swales, catch basins and other structures used to collect and/or 
convey stormwater to receiving water.  By definition, the MS4 includes any system or 
structure owned or maintained by the County.  The County’s Engineering Department 
administers the MS4 program to ensure minimum regional and state requirements are 
met.   


Current Policy 


The Road Department maintains all stormwater structures within County right-of-way as 
well as those on other County properties.  Structures outside the right-of-way are 
maintained by the property owner.  The Road Department is responsible for providing the 
necessary Level of Service to keep the MS4 in good working order.  This includes 
providing periodic inspections, mowing, removing debris and sediment, stabilizing 
eroding areas, making repairs and replacing failing structures.  (Exceptions to this Level 
of Service are culverts beneath driveways; the Road Department provides mowing and 
debris removal but does not replace them.)   


For stormwater structures not part of the MS4 the County’s Level of Service is reduced to 
administering Inspection and Maintenance Agreements, where applicable.   


 


Proposed Policy 


The proposed Extent of Service Policy maintains the current Policy but allows the 
Engineering Department to expand the MS4, on a case-by-case basis, if certain conditions 
are met.  These conditions are as follows: 


• The structure(s) (e.g. pipe, headwalls, and junction boxes) are directly connected 
to existing MS4; 


• The existing conditions pose a significant and real threat to human health, 
property (including County infrastructure), or the environment; 


• Water draining from the MS4 contributes a significant amount to the total flow 
draining through the structure(s); 


• The source of the problem is not attributable to negligence of a particular property 
owner; and 


• Appropriate easements for drainage and maintenance are provided by the property 
owners to the County. 


The Engineering Department would evaluate all requests for a Level of Service 
expansion and prepare a corrective action plan/design for those meeting the above 
criteria.  A cost estimate would also be prepared and the project would be prioritized 
against others.  Projects would be implemented by the Road Department as time and 







resources allow, similar to road improvements.  Large projects which require funding 
beyond that available in the Road Department’s annual budget would be presented to the 
Board for review and approval as a Capital Improvement Project.   


Stormwater systems on office, institutional, commercial or industrial properties would 
not be eligible to be included in the County’s MS4.   





		Engineering- Stormwater Maint...olicy Agenda Request File.pdf

		Engineering- Stormwater Maintenance Policy Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Board of Commissioners Carol Chandler


Mary S. Holland Thursday, August 14, 2008


Consideration of Resolution 2008-12 establishing millage rates and levying ad valorem taxes for 2008.


Every year the Governing Authority (Board of Commissioners) establishes millage rates for the purpose of collecting taxes. The 


Board of Education develops their own budget and determines what millage rate they need in order to collect the taxes they need 


to fund their needs. The Board of Commissioners then uses their recommendation to establish millage rates for educational 


purposes, along with general county taxes, fire taxes, and others. 


 


The process for establishing millage rates and levying taxes is in accordance with Georgia Department of Revenue statutes.


Adopt Resolution No. 2008-12 for the purpose of establishing millage rates and levying taxes for 2008.


Yes Annually


Yes


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


To:  Board of Commissioners  


  Jack Krakeel 


 


From:  Mary S. Holland  


 


Date:  July 22, 2008 


 


Subject: 2008 Millage Rate Recommendation  


 


 


To finalize the tax digest and tax bills for 2008, the County must establish a millage rate 


for each tax district. The 2008 net millage rates for maintenance and operations as 


recommended with a comparison to the 2007 rates are listed below. The recommended 


rates for 2008 incorporates a rollback of the reassessed values for existing property.  


 


General Fund:   2008     2007       Reduction 


Fayetteville & Peachtree City  5.400     5.432 .032 


Brooks & Tyrone    5.400     5.432 .032 


Unincorporated    5.400     5.432 .032 


 


Fire Fund: 


Fire Tax     1.991     2.000 .009 


 


EMS Fund:    0.548       0.550 .002 


EMS Tax  


 


Attached for your reference is a copy of the layout for the newspaper ad of the 5 year 


history along with the proposed millage rates for 2008 and resulting net taxes levied. 


With the rollback of the assessed values included in the proposed rates representing a 


zero percentage increase in County property taxes, only one meeting is required to set the 


millage and is scheduled on the Board of Commissioners meeting of August 14, 2008. 


George has scheduled his meeting with the State on August 15, 2008.  


 


   


Cc: George Wingo 


       Carol Chandler 


      


Attachments 







PEACHTREE CITY & 


FAYETTEVILLE 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008


REAL & PERSONAL 2,022,400,620 2,203,523,459 2,356,372,246 2,544,744,304 2,676,902,137 2,747,057,460


MOTOR VEHICLES 145,566,520 145,795,300 142,496,550 140,893,890 151,511,940 169,625,940


MOBILE HOMES 0 0 0 0 0 0


TIMBER - 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 45,281 19,938 223,195 210,602 521,856 75,566


GROSS DIGEST 2,168,012,421 2,349,338,697 2,499,091,991 2,685,848,796 2,828,935,933 2,916,758,966


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 132,464,252 132,631,857 137,768,316 148,805,524 144,896,793 149,900,614


NET M&O DIGEST 2,035,548,169 2,216,706,840 2,361,323,675 2,537,043,272 2,684,039,140 2,766,858,352


GROSS M&O MILLAGE 12.274 11.552 10.957 10.510 9.468 9.347


LESS: ROLLBACKS 5.455 5.153 4.874 4.818 4.036 3.947


NET M&O MILLAGE 6.819 6.399 6.083 5.692 5.432 5.400


NET TAXES LEVIED 13,880,402.96 14,184,707.07 14,363,931.92 14,440,850.30 14,579,700.61 14,941,035.10


BROOKS AND TYRONE 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008


REAL & PERSONAL 195,069,623 233,652,211 284,448,866 341,662,571 384,961,558 406,397,946


MOTOR VEHICLES 20,238,930 20,259,630 20,553,730 21,162,900 24,051,000 29,587,390


MOBILE HOMES 132,058 94,426 83,045 83,045 93,164 89,863


TIMBER - 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 11,469 14,419 47,747 217,211 337,464 105,428


GROSS DIGEST 215,452,080 254,020,686 305,133,388 363,125,727 409,443,186 436,180,627


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 10,586,143 11,586,264 13,749,595 15,983,031 17,495,612 18,467,174


NET M&O DIGEST 204,865,937 242,434,422 291,383,793 347,142,696 391,947,574 417,713,453


GROSS M&O MILLAGE 12.274 11.552 10.957 10.510 9.468 9.347


LESS: ROLLBACKS 2.064 1.919 1.783 1.912 2.036 1.956


NET M&O MILLAGE 10.210 9.633 9.174 8.598 7.432 7.391


NET TAXES LEVIED 2,091,681.22 2,335,370.79 2,673,154.92 2,984,732.90 2,912,954.37 3,087,320.13


COUNTY UNINCORPORATED 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008


REAL & PERSONAL 1,547,264,434 1,656,955,454 1,788,267,344 1,965,100,471 2,087,209,956 2,153,924,874


MOTOR VEHICLES 180,659,250 179,432,440 176,497,080 167,370,500 175,404,890 191,226,940


MOBILE HOMES 6,865,888 6,810,934 7,100,176 7,100,176 5,731,029 5,235,910


TIMBER - 100% 62,227 83,912 0 210,565 0 129,550


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 109,004 28,861 257,726 185,007 236,522 78,705


GROSS DIGEST 1,734,960,803 1,843,311,601 1,972,122,326 2,139,966,719 2,268,582,397 2,350,595,979


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 92,006,730 92,442,206 95,563,498 100,747,100 101,433,673 104,067,305


NET M&O DIGEST 1,642,954,073 1,750,869,395 1,876,558,828 2,039,219,619 2,167,148,724 2,246,528,674


GROSS M&O MILLAGE 12.274 11.552 10.957 10.510 9.468 9.347


LESS: ROLLBACKS 3.014 2.875 2.675 2.716 2.036 1.956


NET M&O MILLAGE 9.260 8.677 8.282 7.794 7.432 7.391


NET TAXES LEVIED 15,213,754.72 15,192,293.74 15,541,660.21 15,893,677.71 16,106,249.32 16,604,093.43


NOTICE OF HEARING TO SET 2008 MILLAGE RATES 


  


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing for the purpose of 


levying ad valorem taxes for 2008.  The public is invited to attend the hearing held in the 


Public Meeting Room at the Fayette County Administrative Complex at 140 West Stonewall 


Avenue in Fayetteville on August 14, 2008 at 7:00pm.  


 


Fayette County hereby submits the following information for public review.  The historical 


information has been provided from the Fayette County Tax Digest. Proposed millage rates 


for 2008 are indicated.  Following public input, the Board of Commissioners will take action 


to establish 2008 millage rates for ad valorem tax purposes for general government purposes, 


for fire protection purposes, for general education purposes and for the retirement of school 


bond indebtedness.  Information concerning the 2008 millage rates for education purposes 


can be obtained by contacting the Fayette County Board of Education. 







EMERGENCY MEDICAL  


SERVICES 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008


REAL & PERSONAL 3,328,629,068 3,446,542,324


MOTOR VEHICLES 241,937,800 270,428,800


MOBILE HOMES 5,824,193 5,325,773


TIMBER - 100% 0 129,550


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 1,034,509 232,148


GROSS DIGEST 3,577,425,570 3,722,658,595


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 139,773,045 144,063,575


NET M&O DIGEST 3,437,652,525 3,578,595,020


GROSS M&O MILLAGE 0.550 0.548


LESS: ROLLBACKS 0.000 0.000


NET M&O MILLAGE 0.550 0.548


NET TAXES LEVIED 1,890,708.89 1,961,070.07


COUNTY WIDE 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008


REAL & PERSONAL 3,764,734,677 4,094,131,124 4,429,088,456 4,851,507,346 5,149,073,651 5,307,380,280


MOTOR VEHICLES 346,464,700 345,487,370 339,547,360 329,427,290 350,967,830 390,440,270


MOBILE HOMES 6,997,946 6,905,360 7,183,221 7,183,221 5,824,193 5,325,773


TIMBER - 100% 62,227 83,912 0 210,565 0 129,550


HEAVY DUTY EQUIPMENT 165,754 63,218 528,668 612,820 1,095,842 259,699


GROSS DIGEST 4,118,425,304 4,446,670,984 4,776,347,705 5,188,941,242 5,506,961,516 5,703,535,572


LESS: M&O EXEMPTIONS 235,057,125 236,660,327 247,081,409 265,535,655 263,826,078 272,435,093


NET M&O DIGEST 3,883,368,179 4,210,010,657 4,529,266,296 4,923,405,587 5,243,135,438 5,431,100,479


NET TAXES LEVIED 31,185,838.90 31,712,371.60 32,578,747.05 33,319,260.91 35,489,613.19 36,593,518.73


NET TAX $ INCREASE 785,879.35 526,532.70 866,375.45 740,513.86 2,170,352.28 1,103,905.54


NET TAX % INCREASE 2.59% 1.69% 2.73% 2.27% 6.51% 3.11%







                           
 


State of Georgia; 
County of Fayette  


 
RESOLUTION LEVYING COUNTY TAX 


FOR YEAR 2008 
No. 2008 – 12 


 
Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners 


of Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 14th day of August, 2008, that upon $2,246,528,674, the value of 
all property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as appears upon the digest thereof, and 
upon all other taxable property in unincorporated Fayette County, Georgia, there be levied and collected for 
County purposes as set forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, and as hereinafter 
amended and as otherwise authorized by law, a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2008, at the aggregated rate for all 
such purposes of $7.391  per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation, constituting a total tax levy for purposes in 
unincorporated Fayette County of 7.391 mills. 


Upon motion duly made and unanimously passed, it is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners 
of Fayette County, Georgia, duly convened this 14th day of August, 2008, that upon $3,184,571,805, the value of 
all property taxable for County purposes in Fayette County, Georgia, as appears upon the digest thereof, and 
upon all other taxable property in incorporated Fayette County, Georgia, there be levied and collected for County 
purposes, as set forth in the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 48-5-220, as hereinafter amended and 
as otherwise authorized by law, ad valorem, for the year 2008, at the aggregated rate for all such purposes to be 
levied as follows:  
  
1. All property located within the City of Peachtree City will be assessed at $5.400 per $1000.00 of 


assessed valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in Peachtree City of 5.400 mills; 
 
2. All property located within the City of Fayetteville will be assessed at $5.400 per $1,000.00of assessed 


valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in Fayetteville of 5.400 mills; 
 
3. All property located within the Town of Tyrone will be assessed at $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed 


valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in the Town of Tyrone of 7.391 mills; 
 
4. All property located within the Town of Brooks will be assessed at $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed 
 valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in the Town of Brooks of $7.391; 
 
5. All property located within the Town of Woolsey will be assessed at $7.391 per $1,000.00 of assessed 
 valuation, constituting an ad valorem tax levy for purposes in Town of Woolsey of 7.391 mills. 


 
A millage rate of 1.991 mills shall be levied in all incorporated and unincorporated areas of Fayette 


County for fire protection services. The cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City will receive millage rollbacks as a 
result of the combination of government services. Such rollbacks are as follows: the City of Fayetteville shall 
receive a 1.991 mill rollback and; the City of Peachtree City shall receive a 1.991 mill rollback. 


In accordance with provisions within Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 6 of the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia and O.C.G.A. § 36-70-24(3), Fayette County has created a special tax district for the purpose of 
providing Emergency Medical Services to its citizens, said special tax district encompassing all of Fayette County 
with exception of that portion of Fayette County which constitutes the City of Peachtree City. Upon 
$3,578,595,020, the value of all property taxable within the Special EMS Tax District, as appears upon the digest 
thereof, there shall be levied and collected a tax of $.548 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation. 


 







In consideration of combined applicable rollbacks and the applicable Special EMS Tax District levy, the 
total ad valorem taxes levied and assessed are as follows: 7.939 mills for the unincorporated County; 5.948 mills 
for the City of Fayetteville; 5.400 for the City of Peachtree City; 7.939 mills for the Town of Brooks: 7.939 for the 
Town of Tyrone; and 7.939 for the Town of Woolsey. 


Upon recommendation of the Fayette County Board of Education, it is ordered that upon 
$5,032,777,050, the value of all property taxable for educational purposes in Fayette County as appears upon the 
digest thereof, and upon all other property in Fayette County, both real and personal, there be levied a tax, ad 
valorem, for the year 2008, for educational purposes in the amount of $19.350 per $1,000.00 of the assessed 
valuation on the digest as aforesaid, constituting a total tax levy for educational purposes of 19.350 mills. 


It is further ordered that upon $4,924,606,587, the value of all taxable property in said County as 
appears upon the digest thereof, computed by deducting only the special homestead exemption for certain 
persons 65 years of age and over, and upon all other taxable property in said County, both real and personal, 
there be levied and collected a tax, ad valorem, for the year 2008, for the purpose of providing a sinking fund for 
retiring bonded indebtedness and discharging interest thereof, of the Fayette County School District, in the 
amount of $4,170 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation, constituting a total tax levy of 4.170 mills. 


It is hereby ordered by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, this 14th day of August, 
2008, that all taxes, as described and as levied by the adoption of this Resolution, shall be due and collected by 
the Tax Commissioner of Fayette County, by the close of the business day on November 15, 2008. 
 


So resolved this, the 14th day of August, 2008,   by the 
 
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Jack R. Smith, Chairman 
(Seal) 
 
 
Attest: 
 
___________________________ 
Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk 


 





		Finance- Tax Resolution Agenda Request with Backup.pdf

		Finance- Tax Resolution Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Tax Resolution Backup

		Backup 1.pdf

		Backup 2





		Resolution 2008-12






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Planning & Zoning/Community Dev. Peter A. Frisina


Pete Frisina/Dennis Dutton Thursday, August 14, 2008


Approval of  permission for staff to advertise proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance regarding Article VII.  


Conditional Uses, Exceptions, and Modifications, Section 7-1. Conditional Use Approval, B. Conditional Uses Allowed, 23.  Home 


Occupation as presented by the Planning & Zoning Department.


The P&Z Department had a property owner of a lot zoned C-H that contains a vacant single-family residence who asked if the 


property is sold or rented, if the new property owner could have a Home Occupation.  Upon review of the Zoning Ordinance, it was 


discovered that a Single-Family Residence is a Conditional Use  allowed in the C-C, C-H, M-1, M-2, and O-I zoning districts.  A Home 


Occupation is  a Conditional Use allowed in the A-R and residential zoning districts but is not a Conditional Use in the C-C, C-H, M-1, 


M-2, and O-I zoning districts.   Based on these requirements, a single-family residence is not allowed to have a Home Occupation in 


the C-C, C-H, M-1, M-2, and O-I zoning districts.  Instructed by BOC on 06/04/08 to begin review.  


 


This issue was discussed at length at the June 4 BOC Workshop. It will  be heard in Public Hearing by the BOC on September 25.


Permission to advertise the proposed amendments for the P.C. on 09/04/08 and the B.O.C. on 09/25/08.


N/A


Yes Wednesday, June 4, 2008


No


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes

















		Planning and Zoning- Home Occupation Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Home Occupation Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Home Occupation Backup 1.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Home Occupation Backup 2








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Planning and Zoning/ Comm. Dev. Peter A. Frisina


Dennis Dutton/ Pete Frisina Thursday, August 14, 2008


Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance regarding Article V. General Provisions, Section 


5-17. Height Limitation of Walls and Fences and Section 5-11. Common Area, and Article III. Definitions, Common Area, Fence and 


Wall, as presented by the Planning and Zoning Department.  This item was tabled following the July 24, 2008 Public Hearing.


10/03/07, BOC directed staff to review Zoning Ord. in terms of a possible permitting process for walls/fences, requirements for 


maximum height of walls/fences, additional conditions pertaining to architectural/aesthetic design of walls/fences, and required 


visibility through fence structures.  PC discussed walls/fences at 4 Workshops; however, staff and PC not able to reach consensus not 


have the PC members been able to reach consensus amongst themselves.  03/05/08, the BOC directed staff to return at a later date 


with suggestions regarding the light and sound barriers on roadways, light intrusion, and a better definition of the 50% visibility 


requirement.  On 04/02/2008, the BOC directed staff to refine working, including building materials, and clearer definition of "the 


street" in Exemption B-1 and return on 05/07/08.  On 06/04/08, the BOC instructed staff to advertise for public hearing.  On 


07/24/08, the BOC this item after Public Hearing in order to have the proposed amendments "reworded" and reviewed by the 


County Attorney before presentation at the next Thursday meeting held on August 14, 2008.


Adoption of the proposed amendments. 


 


The Planning Commission recommended APPROVAL WITH MODIFICATIONS IN A 4-1 VOTE


N/A


Yes Thursday, July 24, 2008


No


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes























 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA; 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2008 - 06 


 


          AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE (1980), 


AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE V (GENERAL PROVISIONS) SO AS TO AMEND 


THE REQUIREMENTS FOR WALLS AND FENCES OF SECTION 5-17. HEIGHT LIMITATION 


OF WALLS AND FENCES IN ITS ENTIRETY, AS SET FORTH THEREIN; AND  


SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE V (GENERAL PROVISIONS) SO AS TO ADD THE 


REQUIREMENTS FOR A COMMON AREA OF SECTION 5-11. COMMON AREA IN ITS 


ENTIRETY, AS SET FORTH THEREIN; AND  


SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE III (DEFINITIONS) SO AS TO ADD THE DEFINITION FOR 


COMMON AREA, FENCE, AND WALL AS SET FORTH THEREIN;  TO PROVIDE FOR 


SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; 


TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.  


          BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY 


AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 


Section I.  The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further 


amended by amending the provisions for walls and fences in its entirety; by adding provisions for a 


common area; and by adding definitions for Common Area, Fence, and Wall. 


 


Section II.  The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further 


amended by deleting Section 5-17. (Height Limitation of Walls and Fences) in its entirety, and in 


lieu thereof, enacting a new Section 5-17. (Height Limitation of Walls and Fences) to read as 


follows: 


ARTICLE V.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 


 


5-17. Walls, Fences, and Entrance Structures located in a front yard in A-R and all residential 


zoning districts and Residential and Nonresidential Subdivision Entrance Walls and Fences. 


 


 A. All walls and fences shall comply with the following: 


 


 1. No wall or fence shall be constructed in a public right-of-way, and such wall 


or fence shall not be constructed any closer than three (3) feet from any fire 


hydrant.  Walls and fences in the right-of-way shall be removed. 


 


 2. Any vehicular driveway shall have a minimum clearance of fourteen (14) feet 


in width and fourteen (14) feet in height to allow for the passage of 


emergency vehicles. 







 
 


 


3. All walls and fences shall be maintained and repaired as required in the 


International Property Maintenance Code. 


 


4. A Zoning Compliance Certificate will be required for all walls and fences 


located in a front yard prior to construction.  A scaled drawing shall be 


submitted to the Planning & Zoning Department which shall include, but not 


limited to:  wall and/or fence elevations, location, height of wall/fence, 


posts/columns, and ornamental statues, figurines, and light fixtures, visibility, 


spacing over the entire linear footage of wall/fence, changes in grade, 


building materials, and other requirement of the ordinance. 


 


B. Walls and Fences not exceeding four (4) feet in height shall comply with the 


following: 


 


1. A wall or fence shall be constructed of brick/brick veneer, stucco, synthetic 


stucco, rock, stone, cast-stone, wood, wrought iron, chain link or other wire 


materials, or other architecturally engineered facades which match these 


materials. 


 


2. Posts or columns, light fixtures, ornamental statues, and figurines shall not be 


included in the measurement of the four (4) foot wall height. 


 


C. Walls and Fences exceeding four (4) feet in height shall comply with the following: 


 


  1. A wall and/or fence shall be constructed of brick/brick veneer, stucco, 


synthetic stucco, rock, stone, cast-stone, wood, wrought iron, or other 


architecturally engineered facades which match these materials. 


 


   2. A solid wall and/or fence shall not exceed four (4) feet in height and any 


portion of a wall and/or fence higher than four (4) feet shall have a minimum 


visibility of 50 percent (50%) which shall be uniformly spaced over the entire 


linear footage of the wall and/or fence.  Columns and posts shall not be 


included in this calculation. 


 


3. A vehicular entry structure shall not be subject to the four (4) foot wall and 


fence requirement or the minimum visibility of 50 percent (50%) within 35 


feet of either side of the driveway.  


  


D. Walls and fences that cannot meet height requirements due to changes in grade shall 


make adjustments to each section (as created by the columns or posts) of the wall or 


fence to meet the requirements to the greatest degree possible.  In some cases, this 


will result in a stair-step pattern as the wall or fence moves along the grade. 


 


 


 


 


 







 
 


E. Exemptions. 


 


 The following shall be exempt from the above requirements: 


 


 1.  In any residential zoning district where horses are kept in accordance with 


Article V. General Provisions, Raising and Keeping Horses in Residential 


Districts, a wall or fence made of chain link or other wire materials is exempt 


from the four (4) foot maximum height requirement and shall not exceed a 


maximum of five (5) feet in height in a front yard. 


 


2. Where the use of the property is for farming in an A-R zoning district, 


including the raising and selling of crops and livestock, is exempt from the 


four (4) foot maximum height requirement, and exempt from the construction 


requirements of brick/brick veneer, stucco, synthetic stucco, rock, stone, cast-


stone, wood, wrought iron, or other architecturally engineered facades which 


match these materials. 


 


 3. Walls and Fences in any residential or A-R zoning district; 


 


 a. On a corner lot, in order to reduce road noise, a solid wall and/or 


fence along a street which is classified as an Arterial or Collector per 


the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan shall be exempt from the four 


(4) foot maximum height requirement and the 50 percent (50%) 


visibility requirement.  However, this exemption shall not apply to the 


street which the front door of the residence is facing.  


 


  b. Where a temporary fence is used in conjunction with a construction 


site, said fence is exempt from the requirements of this section. 


  


  c. A fence required for a telecommunication tower site shall comply 


with the requirements of Article V. General Provisions,  


Telecommunication Antennas and Towers and shall be exempt from 


the requirements of this section. 


 


  d. A wall or fence used in conjunction with a storm water facility shall 


be exempt from the requirements of this section. 


 


  e. A wall or fence used in conjunction with any non-residential 


Permitted Use or Conditional Use, including but not limited to:  an 


Animal Hospital, Kennel; Cemetery and Mausoleum; Church, 


Temple, or Place of Worship; Colleges and Universities; Day Care 


Facility; School, Private; Telephone, and Electric or Gas Sub-Station 


or other Public Utility Facilities shall be exempt from the 


requirements of this section. 


 


 


 


 







 
 


  f. With regard to the location of a wall or fence, a through lot shall be 


exempt from the four (4) foot maximum height requirement and the 


minimum 50 percent (50%) visibility requirement except for the area 


between the street from which the lot is accessed and the front 


building line which shall be treated as a front yard.    


  


F. Residential and Nonresidential Subdivision Entrance Walls and Fences. 


 


 Subdivision Entrance Walls and Fences shall be placed on common property under 


the ownership of the Home Owners Association (HOA) or the Property Owners 


Association (POA).  Common property shall be shown on the Preliminary Plat and/or 


Final Plat.  Said walls and fences shall not be subject to the four (4) foot height or 50 


percent  (50%) visibility requirements, but shall be constructed of brick/brick veneer, 


stucco, synthetic stucco, rock, stone, cast-stone, wood, wrought iron, or other 


architecturally engineered facades which match these materials. 


 


  (Note: Check with the Building Permits & Inspections Department for any 


permitting requirements for walls/fences/subdivision entrances.) 


 


G. Nonconformance. 


 


All walls and fences which were lawfully built and existing on August 14, 2008, and 


which do not conform with the provisions of this Article, shall be allowed to remain 


in place and shall be considered to be a legally existing non-conforming wall or 


fence.  Additionally, any walls or fences built prior to August 14, 2008, that were in 


compliance with all codes and ordinances when it was built except for the height of 


the wall or fence, and which do not conform with the provisions of this Article, shall 


be considered a legally existing non-conforming wall or fence and shall be allowed to 


remain in place.  All walls and fences built after August 14, 2008, shall comply with 


this Article. 


 


The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further amended by 


adding Section 5-11. (Common Area) in its entirety, enacting a new Section 5-11. (Common Area) to 


read as follows: 


 


5-11.   Common Area.  When a common area is located between a lot and the road/street right-of-


way, the setback on the lot shall be measured from the right-of-way as a front yard setback or from 


the common area as a side or rear setback and whichever is greater shall apply. 


 


The Fayette County Zoning Ordinance (1980), as amended, is hereby further amended by 


adding definitions to Article III (Definitions), thereby enacting a definition for Common Area, Fence, 


and Wall to read as follows: 


 


Common Area.  Any part of a development that is not part of a building lot and is designated for 


the common usage of the development.  


  


Fence.  Structures made of posts, columns, boards, wire, pickets, wrought iron or rails. 







 
 


 


Wall. Structures made of masonry or concrete. 


 


  Section III.  If any part of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the judgment 


of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect the remainder of this 


enactment, and such remainder of this enactment shall remain in full force and effect. 


 


  Section IV.  All laws, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which conflict with the 


provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 


 


  Section V.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval by the Board of 


Commissioners. 


 


 SO ORDAINED, this 14th day of August, 2008. 


 


                            FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD 


OF COMMISSIONERS 


 


  


________________________________________ 


Jack Smith, Chairman 


 


ATTEST: 


 


________________________________ 


Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk 





		Planning and Zoning- Walls and Fences Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Walls and Fences Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Walls and Fences Backup.pdf

		Walls and Fences Ordinance 2008-06








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Road Department Zack Taylor


Phil Mallon Thursday, August 14, 2008


Approval of staff's recommendation to award the annual contract for asphalt (Bid #671) to The Lions Group Paving with alternative 


award to E.R. Snell Contractor, Inc., Tyrone Plant.


This contract is used to procure various asphalt mixes during the paving season.  The Lions Group Paving, Forest Park, provided the 


lowest dollar per ton range of prices.  E.R. Snell Contractor, Tyrone, is recommended as the alternative because the lower 


transportation costs from the Tyrone plant to certain job sites offsets the higher dollar per ton unit of the asphalt.  Additional 


information on the bid evaluation process is provided in the attached memo.


For the Board of Commissioners to award Bid #671, annual asphalt contract, to The Lions Group Paving in Forest Park with alternate 


award to E.R. Snell, Tyrone.


Funding for the asphalt is budgeted annually, in the Road Department's O&M line item 531171.


Yes Thursday, April 10, 2008


No


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







 


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West                                              Main Phone:  770-460-5730                                               Web Site:  www.fayettecounty ga.gov 


 
To:  Purchasing Department  
 
From:  Phil Mallon, Public Works 
 
Date:  August 6, 2008 
 
Subject:   Recommendation for Bid # 671, Asphalt Pricing 
 
Public Works has reviewed the pricing sheets submitted in response to Bid # 671 and 
recommends that the contract be awarded to The Lions Group Paving and that an 
alternate be awarded to E.R. Snell Contractor Inc., Tyrone Plant.   
 
This contract was bid with unit prices as a function of the Georgia Department of Transportation 
Asphalt Cement Price Index (ACPI).  To evaluate the bids, the total projected cost to the County 
was determined using the estimated quantities and mix designs listed in the bid documents for 
each of the ACPI values.  Performing this analysis shows that The Lions Group Paving has 
the lowest cost for all ACPI values between $501/ton and $900/ton and E.R. Snell has the 
lowest cost among the plants located in Tyrone.  The County’s existing contract for asphalt 
will be used for ACPI values less than $501/ton.  Since the ACPI index values are not posted 
until several days into each month, Public Works will have to guess if the index will be above or 
below $501/ton when placing orders before the index is updated for each month.  For reference, 
the July ACPI is $583/ton.    
 
Of the five plants submitting bids, three are located in Forest Park and thus hauling costs are 
similar for each plant.  The two plants in Tyrone have higher dollar per ton rates (as compared to 
The Lions Group Paving) but are closer to many projects within Fayette County.  To determine 
the cost of additional haul distances, a table was developed that accounts for truck maintenance, 
fuel, and operator time (labor).  These factors were converted to a $/(ton)(mile) basis allowing 
for a mileage-based comparison between the Forest Park and Tyrone plants.  Because the 
comparison includes several variables (e.g., distance, asphalt mix, and ACPI) there is not a 
simple answer on when the decreased travel distances offsets the higher unit prices at the Tyrone 
plant.  Each project will be evaluated using the spreadsheet to determine the overall cheapest 
source of asphalt.  In addition, the Tyrone plant may be used if doing so avoids the need for 
overtime pay of County truck drivers and/or contract hauling.   
 
Truck maintenance, fuel and labor data are based on data tracked by Fleet Maintenance for nine 
of the Road Department trucks between April 1, 2007 and August 31, 2007 (fuel costs have been 
adjusted to current costs).  Data supporting these calculations as well as other factors used in this 
bid evaluation are available upon request.   
 









		Road Department- Asphalt Bid Agenda Request File.pdf

		Road Department- Asphalt Bid Backup

		Road Department- Asphalt Bid Backup.pdf

		Road Department- Asphalt Bid Backup.pdf

		Road Department- Asphalt Bid Backup 1.pdf

		Road Department- Asphalt Bid Backup 2



		mo recommendation Bid 671 08-06-08



		Road Department- Asphalt Bid Backup 1 Purchasing Recommendation












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Road Dept. Zack Taylor


Phil Mallon Thursday, August 14, 2008


Consideration of a proposed Resolution and Intergovernmental Agreement with Clayton County for repair and improvements to 


the Helmer Road Bridge over Camp Creek.


The Helmer Road Bridge requires replacement of its guardrail, and reconstruction and stabilization of both the east and west 


abutments. 


Clayton County contacted Fayette County for assistance. Clayton is taking the lead on this project and has received three quotes 


and plans to award work to Sunbelt Structures Inc., as low bidder, for $54,066.25.  Under the proposed Intergovernmental 


Agreement the cost would be split 50/50 between Fayette and Clayton County. 


 


Earlier this year the Fayette County Road Department solicited bids for the guardrail replacement but the scope of work did not 


meet GDOT standards and specifications nor include the reconstruction and stabilization work.


Approval of the Resolution and Intergovernmental Agreement with Clayton County for repair and improvements to the Helmer 


Road Bridge over Camp Creek.


The cost to Fayette County for this project should be $27,033.13.  The project was not included in either the FY '08 or '09 budget; the 


source of funding must be determined and can hopefully be found within the approved current budget for this department.


No


No


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Contingency Funds would have to be utilized to fund this project if funds cannot be found within the Department's approved 


budget.





		Road Department- Helmer Road Agenda Request File.pdf

		Road Department- Helmer Road Backup

		Road Department- Helmer Road Backup 1.pdf

		Road Department- Helmer Road Backup 2

		Road Department- Helmer Road Resolution 2008-11












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Road Department Zack Taylor


Phil Mallon Thursday, August 14, 2008


Consideration of a request to improve the 0.5 mile section of Snead Road west of Old Greenville Road. 


Snead Road is divided into 3 sections. A few years ago, the County paved a short portion of the road from Old Greenville north to a 


dead end. The Road Department is currently working to improve and pave Snead Road from Old Greenville to Chappell Road, which 


is a CIP project.  Several residents on the "west" section of Snead Road off Bernhard Road have requested that it be improved as well. 


Since this section was not included in the design or cost estimate, the Road Department has put together several options for a 


choice in the type of paving surface to be used on this short portion of the road.  Staff would like the Board's consideration and 


direction (see attached).


Direction from the Board on what type of surface to apply on the "west" section of Snead Road and authorization to schedule this 


work.


If approved, funding would be required.  None has been budgeted.


No


Yes


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Contingency Funds would need to be utilized to fund this project. 







 


_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West                                              Main Phone:  770-460-5730                                          Web Site:  www.fayettecounty ga.gov 


 
TO:  Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM:  Phil Mallon & Zack Taylor, Public Works 
 
DATE:  July 25, 2008 
 
RE:  Options for Improvements to the “West” Portion of Snead Road 
 
To assist with the Board’s decision on what action to take regarding the “west” portion of Snead Road, the 
Road Department has identified five options and provided a cost estimate for each one, where applicable.   


1. Triple Surface Treatment – This option provides a combination of gravel and tack applications over the 
existing gravel surface.  The work can be completed within one week and would cost $20,000.  Surface 
treatments provide adequate wearing surfaces for light traffic but tends to break-up quickly under heavy 
loads, such as those associated with construction.  No shoulder or drainage improvements would be 
made under this option.   


2. Binder and Overlay – This option provides 4 inches of graded aggregate base (GAB), 2 inches of asphalt 
binder and 1.5 inches of asphalt topping.  The work would take approximately two weeks and cost 
$58,000 (based on July 2008 asphalt prices).  This option provides a more permanent wearing surface 
and would perform significantly better under construction loads.  Minimal shoulder and drainage 
improvements would be made and the road width would remain the same.  Striping and signs would 
provide some safety improvements.   


3. Standard County Cross-Section – This option would improve the road to the same standards used for the 
other section of Snead Road and all other roads improved within the unincorporated County.  The road 
would be widen to 24 feet and have 6 inches of GAB, 2 inches of binder and 1.5 inches of topping.  One 
pipe upgrade would be made and standard shoulders and ditches would be provided.  The work would 
take approximately three weeks and cost $90,000 (based on July 2008 asphalt prices).   


4. CIP – Under this option the Road Department would defer work on this project until it can be 
programmed as a separate CIP.   


5. No Action – Under this option the Road Department would continue to maintain the gravel road as it has 
in the past.   


Additional notes and assumptions: 


• The cost estimates are for material only.  Labor and equipment are assumed to be provided by the Road 
Department.   


• Traditionally, the County requires any road improvement to meet the standard cross section.  However, 
the western portion of Snead road is approximately 0.5 miles in length, is a dead-end, has little traffic, 







 
 


and does not have any know drainage problems (e.g., flood-prone areas or erosion).  For these reasons, 
this segment is a viable candidate for a-typical consideration.   


• We recommend that prior to any work being done the County solicit right-of-way donation along the 
length of the road.  Based on past conversations it seems most, if not all, are supportive of improvements 
to the road and are willing to donate right-of-way.   


 





		Road Department- Snead Road Agenda Reqest File.pdf

		Road Department- Snead Road Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Road Department  Zack Taylor


Phil Mallon Thursday, August 14, 2008


Approval of the Road Department's recommendation to award annual contract for CRS-2H tack material, Bid #672, to Blacklidge 


Emulsions, Inc.


Fayette County awards annual contracts for purchase of CRS-2H tack material for road improvements, new paving projects and 


resurfacing projects each year.  Two vendors responded to this year's bid.  Blacklidge unit prices ($/gallon) are the lowest for the 


current asphalt cement price index.  Additional information on the bid evaluation process is attached in the memo.


Approval of the Road Department's recommendation to award bid #672 to Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc.


Funding for this contract is budgeted in the Road Department asphalt and tack line item #531171.


Yes Wednesday, May 7, 2008


No


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes







 


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West                                              Main Phone:  770-460-5730                                               Web Site:  www.fayettecounty ga.gov 


 
 


To:  Purchasing Department  
 
From:  Phil Mallon, Public Works 
 
Date:  July 19, 2007 
 
Subject:   Recommendation for Bid # 672, CRS-2H Tack Material 
 
Public Works has reviewed the pricing tally sheet for Bid # 672 and recommends that the 
contract be awarded to Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc.   
 
The contract is based on the Georgia Department of Transportation Asphalt Cement Price Index 
(ACPI) and thus different unit prices for the tack material are provided for each $25/ton ACPI 
increment.  Of the two bidders, Blacklidge Emulsions has the lower cost for ACPI values 
ranging from $501 to $750/ton.  The July 2008 ACPI of $583/ton is the highest value since 
October 2005 (the oldest date shown on the GDOT table) and although the index may continue 
to increase, it is unlikely to exceed $751/ton before the end of the calendar year. 
 
Fayette County’s existing annual contract for tack material, also with Blacklidge, dictates for 
ACPI values below $501/ton. 
 
The total cost of tack material purchased for the remainder of the year will exceed $20,000.   
 
 
 
 
 









		Road Department- Tack Material Agenda Request File.pdf

		Road Department- Tack Material Backup

		Road Department- Tack Material Backup 1.pdf

		Road Department- Tack Material Backup 2

		Road Department- Tack Material Backup 3












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Road Department / SPLOST Zack Taylor


Carlos Christian Thursday, August 14, 2008


Discussion of proposal to construct a pedestrian access across the West Fayetteville Bypass- Phase I project currently under 


construction.


In 2006 a task force comprised of Fayette County and City of Fayetteville officials was put together to study future development 


along SR54 in the hospital area  and to develop a master plan .   With the anticipated growth planned for the Hospital area, efforts 


were directed to ensure a coordinated internal road network and multi-use path system for access between proposed future 


residential areas, office areas, and commercial areas.   To meet the task force objectives, pedestrian access and connectivity across 


the new bypass would be necessary.  The City of Fayetteville has requested Fayette County to install the underpass during 


construction of the bypass.   With a projected September 2009 project completion schedule, an underpass could delay the project.   


By electing to go with a future overpass, there would be more flexibility as to its location and it would not impact the current 


construction schedule.   The potential locations for the underpass and the overpass will be presented at the BOC meeting.     


We are seeking direction from the Board of Commissioners on which option to take to provide pedestrian access across the new 


bypass with either an overpass or an underpass.


The underpass is estimated to cost ±$100,000. The overpass is estimated to cost ±$200,000.   Neither the underpass or overpass 


were initially budgeted for this project; however, we expect to be under-budget for this project since the work is being done by in-


house forces.   Money should be available for the multi-use path upon project completion.


No


Yes


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department/Division: Department Head:


Presenter, if needed: Preferred Meeting Date:


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval Confirmed Meeting Date


 Recognition/ 


 Presentation


 Public 


 Hearing
 Old  


 Business


 New 


 Business
 Consent  Report  Other


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance?


Approved by Purchasing?


Reviewed  by Legal?


Approved by Administrative Staff?


Staff Notes


Print Form


Sheriff's Department Randall Johnson


Michelle Walker Thursday, August 14, 2008


Authorization for the Chairman to execute the Federal Annual Certification Report as requested by Sheriff Randall Johnson.   


In the early 1990's the County agreed to participate in federal programs whereby law enforcement agencies for local governments 


share in the distribution of proceeds resulting from their participation in the investigation and prosecution of illegal drug activities.  


Each year, a summary of the expenses paid for from these funds is presented to the Board of Commissioners and must be signed by 


the Chairman of the Board. 


 


These federal programs are offered by the U.S. Department of Justice and the U.S. Treasury Department.


Authorize Chairman to execute Federal Annual Certification Report.


Yes Annually


No


Yes Thursday, August 14, 2008


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes





